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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

Quarterly Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(dhef
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934

FOR THE QUARTERLY PERIOD ENDED September 30, 2006
Commission File Number 1-134

CURTISSWRIGHT CORPORATION

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its @nart

Delaware 13-061297C
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
organization’

4 Becker Farm Roa
Roseland, New Jerst 07068
(Address of principal executive office (Zip Code)

(973) 5974700

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area rode

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant @ tiled all reports required to be filed by SeetiB or 15(d) of the Securities Excha
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months anché®) been subject to such filing requirements ferptast 90 days.

Yes[X] No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant iarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, aroa-accelerated filer. See definition
“accelerated filer and large accelerated filerRinle 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated fildX] Accelerated filel ] Non-accelerated file[]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exge Act).

YesD No

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of e&tiiedssuer’s classes of common stock, as ofdtest practicable date.
Common Stock, par value $1.00 per share 43,93&R8fs (as of October 31, 2006).
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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements

CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
(UNAUDITED)

(In thousands except per share d

Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Research and development exper
Selling expense
General and administrative expen

Environmental remediation and administrative expsnae

of recoveries
(Gain) loss on sale of real estate and fixed assets
Operating income

Other (expense) income, r
Interest expense

Earnings before income tax
Provision for income taxes

Net earning:

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

Dividends per share
Weighted average shares outstand

Basic
Diluted

Three Months Ended

Nine Months Ended

September 3(
200¢ 200¢
$ 311,80 $ 271,35
205,78 177,84(
106,01t 93,51t
7,227 8,50¢
19,38: 16,73¢
41,93¢ 35,54¢
273 18¢
(51) 98
37,25 32,44
(18) 27¢
(5,727 (4,91
31,51: 27,80¢
11,15¢ 10,28¢
$ 20,35¢ $ 17,51¢
$ 0.4¢€ $ 0.4C
$ 0.4¢ $ 0.4C
$ 0.0¢ $ 0.0t
43,90: 43,37¢
44,33¢ 43,94¢

September 3(

200¢ 200¢

$ 903,98t $ 813,03
600,35t 533,45.

303,63: 279,58
28,53! 30,31:
57,00¢ 51,63
122,72( 106,51!
362 844
68 (2,827

94,947 93,10¢
29t (421
(17,109 (13,999
78,13¢ 78,69:
24,41: 28,71¢

$  53,72¢ $  49,97¢
$ 1.2¢ $ 1.1€
$ 1.21 $ 1.14
$ 0.1¢ $ 0.14
43,77¢ 43,20¢
44,25 43,78(

Shares and per share amounts have been adjussegroriorma basis for the April 21, 2006
2-for-1 stock split as further described in Not® the consolidated financial statements.

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(UNAUDITED)

(In thousands

September 30, December 31,
2006 2005
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalel $ 47,371 $ 59,02:
Receivables, n¢ 280,70! 244,68
Inventories, ne 178,98: 146,29°
Deferred tax assets, r 21,26¢ 28,84
Other current assets 13,07¢ 11,618
Total current assets 541,40¢ 490,46¢
Property, plant and equipment, net 290,08( 274,82:
Prepaid pension cos 72,12: 76,00z
Goodwill 414,28t 388,15¢
Other intangible assets, r 157,19« 158,26’
Other assets 12,11( 12,57
Total Assets $ 1,487,20 $ 1,400,28!
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Shor-term debr $ 5,941 $ 88t
Accounts payabl 77,13¢ 80,46(
Accrued expense 68,80( 74,25
Dividends payabli 2,64( —
Income taxes payab 2,94¢ 22,85t
Other current liabilities 55,75¢ 43,05
Total current liabilities 213,22 221,50:
Long-term debt 385,00 364,01°
Deferred tax liabilities, ne 51,51: 53,57(
Accrued pension and other postretirement benegits 72,68¢ 74,99¢
Long-term portion of environmental resen 21,477 22,64¢
Other liabilities 28,29¢ 25,33
Total Liabilities 772,19 762,06!
Stockholders Equity
Common stock, $1 par vali 47,53 25,49:
Additional paic-in capital 68,81 59,80¢
Retained earning 691,82: 667,89:
Unearned portion of restricted stc (66) 12
Accumulated other comprehensive income 37,32 20,65¢
845,42! 773,83
Less: Cost of treasury stock (130,42) (135,619
Total Stockholders’ Equity 715,00: 638,22(
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 1,487,20 $ 1,400,28!

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(UNAUDITED)
(In thousands)

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net earnings $

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash
provided by operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic
Loss (gain) on sale of real estate and fixed a:
Deferred income taxe
Shar+based compensatic

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of
businesses acquire

Increase in receivable

Increase in inventorie

(Decrease) increase in progress paym

Decrease in accounts payable and accrued exp

Increase (decrease) in deferred reve

(Decrease) increase in income taxes pay

Increase (decrease) in net pension and postretitdiabilities
Decrease in other assi

(Decrease) increase in other liabilities

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales of r-operating asse
Acquisitions of intangible asse
Additions to property, plant and equipmi
Net cash paid for acquisitions

Net cash used for investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from revolving credit agreem
Principal payments on revolving credit agreen
Proceeds from exercise of stock optir
Dividends paic
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation

Net cash provided by financing activities

Effect of foreign currency

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $

Supplemental disclosure of investing activiti
Fair value of assets acquired in current year attipns $
Additional consideration paid on previous y¢ acquisitions
Liabilities assumed from current year acquisiti
Cash acquired from current year acquisitions

Net cash paid for acquisitions $

2006 2005
53,72¢ $ 49,97¢
38,08: 35,85¢

68 (2,827)
1,501 (572)
4,33: —

(21,74 (19,119
(30,299 (26,687
(53) 7,10(
(16,127) (6,515)
9,23¢ (9,529)
(13,815 9,01:
1,56¢ (5,354)

8 67¢
(1,220) 78C
(28,46%) (17,169
25,26 32,81z
66¢ 11,02
(1,61€) (4,882)
(27,926 (31,400)
(39,40%) (71,009
(68,27%) (96,26%)
214,00 330,00(
(188,042 (261,25
7,28¢ 8,13¢
(5,262) (3,899
1,37¢ —
29,35( 72,981
2,021 (2,875
(11,649 6,641
59,02 41,03
47,37 $ 47 68¢
42,75¢ $ 82,82(
4,60¢ 8,187
(7,941) (19,776

17) (222)

39,40¢ $ 71,00¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(UNAUDITED)

(In thousands)

Accumulated

Class B Additional Other
Common Common Paid in Retained Comprehensive Treasury
Stock Stock Capital Earnings Income Stock

December 31, 2004 $ 16,64¢ $ 8,76t $ 55,85 $ 601,07( $ 36,797 $ (143,515)
Net earning: — — — 75,28( — —
Translation adjustments, r — — — — (16,149 —
Dividends — — — (8,45%) — —
Stock options exercised, net — — 42 — — 7,721
Stock issued under employee stock purchase plan, ne 82 — 3,861 — — —
Recapitalizatior 8,76¢ (8,76%) — — —
Other — — 38 — — 18C
December 31, 2005 25,49: — 59,79« 667,89: 20,65¢ (135,61A)
Net earning: — — — 53,72¢ — —
Translation adjustments, net — — — — 16,66 —
Dividends — — — (7,902) — —
Share-based compensation expense — — 4,191 — — 141
Stock options exercised, net — — (29¢) — — 4,80¢
Stock issued under employee stock purchase plan, ne 147 — 4,41¢ — — —
Two-for-one common stock split effected in the form of 8%0stock dividenc 21,89: — — (21,899 — —
Other — — 64C — — 247
September 30, 20C $ 47,53¢ $ — $ 68,74 $ 691,82! $ 37,32: $ (130,421)

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)

BASIS of PRESENTATION

Curtiss-Wright Corporation and its subsidiariese(tfCorporation”)is a diversified multinational manufacturing andviee
company that designs, manufactures, and overhaetisppn components and systems and provides hagidineered products &
services to the aerospace, defense, automotivppisiding, oil and gas processing, agricultural ipment, railroad, pow
generation, security, and metalworking industri@gerations are conducted through 35 manufactugnijtfes, 58 metal treatme
service facilities, and 2 aerospace component agidnd repair locations.

The unaudited consolidated financial statement$udec the accounts of Curtiss-Wright Corporation atsd majority-ownec
subsidiaries. All material intercompany transacddiend accounts have been eliminated.

The unaudited consolidated financial statementhefCorporation have been prepared in conformityh \eccounting principle
generally accepted in the United States of Ameaaitd such preparation requires management to mékeagss and judgments tl
affect the reported amount of assets, liabilitieyenue, and expenses and disclosure of contirggs®ts and liabilities in t
accompanying financial statements. The most siprifi of these estimates include the costs to cdmfdagtierm contracts und
the percentage of completion accounting methodugiedul lives for property, plant, and equipmeistcflows used for testing
recoverability of assets, pension plan and postragnt obligation assumptions, amount of inventlgolescence, valuation
intangible assets, warranty reserves, and futwaarmmental costs. Actual results may differ frdmese estimates. In the opiniot
management, all adjustments considered necesgaayfdir presentation have been reflected in tfiesmcial statements.

The unaudited consolidated financial statementsilshioe read in conjunction with the audited cordatid financial statemel
and notes thereto included in the Corporation's528@nual Report on Form 1K- The results of operations for interim periods
not necessarily indicative of trends or of the afiag results for a full year.

On February 7, 2006, the Board of Directors dedae-ford stock split in the form of a 100% stock dividefithe split, in th
form of 1 share of Common stock for each share @h@on stock outstanding, was paid on April 21, 28®6&hareholders
record as of April 7, 2006. To effectuate the stepkt, the Corporation issued 21.9 million shapé®riginal Common stock,
$1.00 par value from capital surplus, with a cquoesling reduction in retained earnings of $21.9ioml All references througha
this Quarterly Report on Form 1D-to number of shares, per share amounts, stodknsptiata, and market prices of
Corporation’s Common stock have been adjustedfiectehe effect of this stock split for all pereg@resented, where applicable.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Corporation adofedement of Financial Accounting Standards No. (t@&@sed 2004)Share-
Based PaymerftFAS 123(R)"), and related interpretations usihg tmodified prospective method. See Note 10 foitiadheh!
information regarding share-based compensation.

Certain prior year information has been reclasgif@conform to current presentation.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2006, the Financial Accounting Standddard (“FASB”)issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standalo.
155, Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instrumestein amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and“SHAS No
155"). SFAS No. 155 permits a fair value remeasuremenarfigrhybrid financial instrument that contains ambedded derivati
that would otherwise require bifurcation. This aeotting standard is effective as of the beginnindisdal years beginning aff
September 15, 2006. The Corporation does not patei
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)

that the adoption of this statement will have aariat impact on the Corporation’s results of operabr financial condition.

In March 2006, the FASB issued the Statement oéiéial Accounting Standards No. 13&counting for Servicing of Financ
Assets, an amendment of FASB Statements Nd*3BAS No. 156").SFAS No. 156 requires that servicing assets andcey
liabilities be recognized at fair value, if praetide, when the Corporation enters into a serviaggeement and allows b
alternatives, the amortization and fair value mezrment methods, as subsequent measurement meitsi®ccounting stande
is effective for all new transactions occurring @sthe beginning of fiscal years beginning aftepteenber 15, 2006. TI
Corporation does not anticipate that the adoptibithis statement will have a material impact on @erporation$ results ¢
operation or financial condition.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation Nqg.At&ounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxesr-nterpretation of FAS
Statement No. 109‘FIN 48”"). FIN 48 prescribes a more likely than not threshfdd financial statement recognition ¢
measurement of a tax position taken or expectetletdaken in a tax return. This Interpretation gbsovides guidance ¢
derecognition of income tax assets and liabilitedassification of current and deferred incomedasgets and liabilities, account
for interest and penalties associated with taxtiprs, accounting for income taxes in interim pdsioand income tax disclosul
This Interpretation is effective as of January @02, and the Corporation is currently evaluating timpact of FIN 48 on ti
financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158plByers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensiordadther
Postretirement Plans” (“SFAS No. 158This Statement requires companies to recognize kabdity or asset to report the fund
status of their defined benefit pension and otlostnetirement benefit plans (“the Plans”). The ggution of a net asset or liability
will require an offsetting adjustment to accumutat¢her comprehensive income (“AOCI”) in sharehaddequity. SFAS No.158
will not change how the Plans are accounted forrapdrted in the income statement. Therefore, theusmts to be recognized in
AOCI will be the unrecognized gains/losses, premwige costs/credits, and transition assets/olitigat which will continue to be
amortized under the existing guidance as net pierfpehsion cost in the income statement. Compa@sequired to initially
recognize the funded status and provide the redjdiisclosures beginning for fiscal year ends dtecember 15, 2006. Based
upon the most recent actuarial data availablengtémpact on the December 31, 2006 balance shadtivoe to increase prepaid
pension costs by $17.9 million, increase otherenirliabilities by $2.3 million, reduce accrued pi@m and post retirement benefit
costs by $3.2 million, increase deferred tax liéib8 by $7.1 million, with the offset increasinmekholders’ equity by $11.7
million. Additionally, for fiscal years ending aft®ecember 15, 2008, FAS 158 will require compatoesieasure the plan assets
and obligations as of the date of the employessdi year end, however earlier adoption of the reasent date provisions is
encouraged. The Corporation currently utilizes raezmsent dates of September 30 and October 31sfgaiious Plans. The
Corporation does not anticipate the change initoalfyear end measurement date to have a matapatt on the Corporation’s
results of operation or financial condition.

ACQUISITIONS

The Corporation acquired three businesses duriagnitle months ended September 30, 2006, as dasdnibraore detail beloy
The acquisitions have been accounted for as pugshagh the excess of the purchase price overstimated fair value of the r
tangible and intangible assets acquired recordegbadwill. The Corporation makes preliminary estiesaof the purchase pr
allocations, including the value of identifiabléangibles with a finite life, and records amortiaatbased upon the estimated us
life of those intangible assets identified. The @@wation will adjust these estimates based upotysisaof third party appraisa
when deemed appropriate, and the determinatioaiof&lue when finalized, within twelve months fr@aoquisition.
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)

Please refer to the Corporation’s 2005 Annual ReporForm 10K for more detail on the 2005 acquisition. The tesof the
acquired businesses have been included in the lideisal financial results of the Corporation frohe tdate of acquisition in t
segments indicated as follows:

Flow Control Segment

Enpro Systems

On April 17, 2006, the Corporation acquired theetssind certain liabilities of Enpro Systems Lt&Enpro”). The purchase pri
of the acquisition, subject to customary adjustmest provided for in the Asset Purchase Agreemeat,$17.5 million. Under tl
terms of the agreement, the Corporation deposited &illion into escrow as security for potentiatiémnification claims agair
the seller. Any escrow remaining after claims futémnification have been settled will be paid ® $kller within 13 months frc
the acquisition date by the escrow agent. Managefuaded the purchase from the Corporation’s rewmgj\credit facility.

The purchase price of the acquisition has beennprerily allocated to the net tangible and intdslgiassets acquired, with
remainder recorded as goodwill, on the basis dmaséd fair values. The estimated excess of thehase price over the fair va
of the net assets acquired is $8.9 million at Septr 30, 2006. The Corporation may adjust thesmatgs based upon analysi:
third party appraisals and the final determinatbfair value.

Enpro, whose operations are located in Channelviesxas, is a leader in the design and manufacthiengineered presst
vessels, catalytic cracking process equipment, @ittal service valves for the petrochemical, mafg, and utility market
Revenues of the acquired business were $35.9 milliothe year ended December 31, 2005.
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)

Swantech

On September 1, 2006, the Corporation acquirecaisets and certain liabilities of TechSwan, Indngldusiness as Swants
(“Swantech”). The purchase price of the acquisition, subject ustamary adjustments as provided for in the Assethas
Agreement, was $3.6 million. The Corporation isdireg $0.2 million as security for any remaining gmtial obligations of tt
seller. Management funded the cash portion of threhase from the Corporation’s revolving creditlfgc

The purchase price of the acquisition has beennprerily allocated to the net tangible and intdslgiassets acquired, with
remainder recorded as goodwill, on the basis dmaséd fair values. The estimated excess of thehmse price over the fair va
of the net assets acquired is $2.9 million at Septr 30, 2006. The Corporation may adjust thesmatgs based upon analysi:
third party appraisals and the final determinatbfair value.

The acquired business, located in Fort Lauderddtgjda, has developed advanced software to mgmtedict, and evaluate 1
operating condition of high performance criticaliggnent, primarily within the marine, power and gges markets. Revenue:
the acquired business were $1.1 million for ther yemled December 31, 2005.

Metal Treatment Segment

Allegheny Coatings

On May 10, 2006, the Corporation acquired the asmad certain liabilities of two business unitDafersified Coatings, Inc. doit
business as Allegheny Coatings (“Alleghenyhe purchase price of the acquisition, subjectustamary adjustments as provi
for in the Asset Purchase Agreement, was $15.liomillThe Corporation is holding $1.5 million as wéty for potentia
indemnification claims. Any amount of holdback reénwiag after claims for indemnification have beeritlse will be paid 1
months from the acquisition date. Management furitéedcash portion of the purchase from the Corpunat revolving cred
facility.

The purchase price of the acquisition has beennprerily allocated to the net tangible and intdrlgiassets acquired, with
remainder recorded as goodwill, on the basis dmaséd fair values. The estimated excess of thehase price over the fair va
of the net assets acquired is $4.2 million at Saptr 30, 2006. The Corporation may adjust thesmatts based upon analysi
third party appraisals and the final determinatbfair value.

The two acquired business units, located in Fremodiana and Ingersoll, Ontario, Canada, apphhtpgrformance specializ
coatings primarily to automotive braking and susp@m components utilizing automated spray coatingsl Revenues of t
combined business units were $12.7 million forybar ended December 31, 2005.
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)
3. RECEIVABLES
Receivables at September 30, 2006 and Decemb@085,include amounts billed to customers and ugdbilharges on longgrr
contracts consisting of amounts recognized as $alesot billed as of the dates presented. Suhatignall amounts of unbille
receivables are expected to be billed and collewifdn one year.

The composition of receivables for those periodssifollows:

(In thousands

September 30, 2006 December 31, 2005
Billed Receivables:
Trade and other receivabl $ 199,49: $ 171,20:
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (5,357) (5,459
Net billed receivable 194,13« 165,75(
Unbilled Receivables:;
Recoverable costs and estimated earnings not | 112,14¢ 107,61¢
Less: Progress payments applied (25,575 (28,679
Net unbilled receivable 86,57 78,93¢
Receivables, net $ 280,70! $ 244,68

The net receivable balance at September 30, 2@0&dies $5.5 million related to the Corporation’®@@cquisitions.

4. INVENTORIES

In accordance with industry practice, inventoriexts contain amounts relating to lotegm contracts and programs with |
production cycles, a portion of which will not beatized within one year. Inventories are valuethatlower of cost (principal
average cost) or market. The composition of inveesds as follows:

(In thousands

September 30, 2006 December 31, 2005

Raw materia $ 66,81: $ 59,33¢
Work-in-process 57,07( 43,09¢
Finished goods and component pi 57,34: 52,82¢
Inventoried costs related to U.S. Government ahdrdbng-term contracts 37,49% 27,53
Gross inventorie 218,72. 182,79:
Less: Inventory reserve (25,569 (25,377

Progress payments applied, principally relate@itmiterm contracts (14,170 (11,119
Inventories, net $ 178,98: $ 146,29’

The net inventory balance at September 30, 2006des $0.9 million related to the Corporation’s @@&quisitions.
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)
5. GOODWILL
The Corporation accounts for acquisitions by assmnhe purchase price to tangible and intangilsieets and liabilities. Ass
acquired and liabilities assumed are recordedeit fhir values, and the excess of the purchase mver the amounts assigne
recorded as goodwill.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwilltfa nine months ended September 30, 2006 arelaw/$ol

(In thousands)

Flow Motion Metal
Control Control Treatment Consolidated
December 31, 2005 $117,16¢ $ 250,89¢ $ 20,09: $ 388,15¢
Goodwill from 2006 acquisition 11,88¢ - 4,24( 16,12¢
Change in estimate to fair value of net assetsigemin prior year: (69) (87%) = (9449)
Additional consideration for prior ye¢ acquisitions 2,711 1,69¢ 10 4,41¢
Currency translation adjustment 94¢ 5,28¢ 28€ 6,524
September 30, 2006 $132,64¢ $ 257,00¢ $ 24,62¢ $ 414,28t

The purchase price allocations relating to the nms&ses acquired during 2006 are based on estiraatedhrave not yet be
finalized.

The Corporation completed its required annual golbdmvpairment testing during the third quarter 2806. The testing indicat
that the recorded carrying value of the Corporasigoodwill is not impaired.

6. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS, net
Intangible assets are generally the result of attipis and consist primarily of purchased techgg)a@ustomer related intangibl
trademarks and service marks, and technology lesristangible assets are amortized over usefes liiat range between 1

20 years.

The following tables present the cumulative comjpamsiof the Corporatiors intangible assets and include $9.9 million ofiimite
lived intangible assets within other intangibleedsgor both periods presented.

(I'n thousands)
Accumulated

September 30, 20( Gross Amortization Net

Developed technology $ 96,59¢ $ (18,519 $ 78,08
Customer related intangibl 76,43" (12,599 63,83¢
Other intangible assets 18,57 (3,299 15,27
Total $ 191,60¢ $ (34,415 S 157,19:

(In thousands)
Accumulated

December 31, 20C Gross Amortization Net
Developed technology $ 92,58( $ (13510 $ 79,07(
Customer related intangibl 74,06 (8,960 65,10¢
Other intangible assets 16,69 (2,609 14,09/
Total $ 183,34( $ (25,075 % 158,26°
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)

The following table presents the changes in thébaktnce of intangibles assets during the nine hsoemded September 30, 2006.

(In thousands)

Other

Developed technology, Customer Related Intangible
net Intangibles, net Assets, net Total
December 31, 2005 $ 79,07C  $ 65,10 $ 14,09  $ 158,26°
Acquired during 200! 2,00¢ 1,75% 1,80¢ 5,56¢
Amortization expens (4,587 (3,566 (690 (8,849
Net currency translation adjustme 1,59¢ 54E 64 2,207
September 30, 2006 $ 78,08 $ 63,83¢ $ 15,27  $ 157,19

7. WARRANTY RESERVES

The Corporation provides its customers with watiemnbn certain commercial and governmental prodssmated warranty co:
are charged to expense in the period the relateehue is recognized based on quantitative histosgperience. Estimat
warranty costs are reduced as these costs areddcamd as the warranty period expires and maytherwise modified as speci
product performance issues are identified and veslolWarranty reserves are included within otherrent liabilities on th
Corporation’s Consolidated Balance Sheets. Thevidtig table presents the changes in the Corporatiearranty reserves:

(In thousands)

2006 2005

Warranty reserves at January 1, $ 9,85( $ 9,661
Provision for current year sal 2,53¢ 2,39(
Increase due to acquisitio 27 1,79¢
Current year claim (1,599 (1,85¢)
Change in estimates to -existing warrantie (6049) (1,369
Foreign currency translation adjustment 347 (319
Warranty reserves at September 30, $ 10,56: $ 10,31

8. PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

Pension Plans
The components of net periodic pension cost fotlihee months ended September 30, 2006 and 20@5 wer

(In thousands)

Curtiss-Wright Plans EMD Plans
September 30, September 30,
2006 2005 2006 2005
Service cost $ 3,39¢ $ 2,53t $ 954 $ 1,02¢
Interest cos 1,78¢ 2,092 2,16¢ 2,09¢
Expected return on plan ass (4,079 (4,17¢) (2,159 (2,019
Amortization of prior service co: 80 41 78 3
Amortization of net loss 59 9 - -
Amortization of transition asset 1) 1) - -
Net periodic benefit cos $ 1,24¢ $ 50C $ 1,041 $ 1,112
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The components of net periodic pension cost fonthe months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005 were

(In thousands)

Curtiss-Wright Plans EMD Plans
September 30, September 30,
2006 2005 2006 2005
Service cost $ 9,391 $ 7,72¢ $ 3,29¢ $ 2,87¢
Interest cos 6,08( 6,07¢ 6,42¢ 6,224
Expected return on plan ass (12,329 (12,427 (6,527%) (5,905
Amortization of prior service co: 20¢ 101 80 3
Amortization of net loss 15E 23 - -
Amortization of transition asset 3) () - -
Other benefit costs 1,55¢ = = =
Net periodic benefit cos $ 5,057 $ 1,50( $ 3,27¢ $ 3,19¢

During the nine months ended September 30, 20@6Ctrporation did not make any contributions to GuetissWright Pensio
Plan and no contributions are anticipated in 2@d@ntributions to the EMD Pension Plan were $6.0ionilduring the first nin
months of 2006 and no further contributions areeeid during the remainder of the year.

The other benefit costs indicated above represemtetvents that are accounted for under SFAS No:B8ployers’ Accounting
for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Beneéhsion Plans and for Termination Benefits” (“F&8). The first event is
settlement charge resulting from the retiremena ¢y executive and his subsequent election tawedgs pension benefit a:
single lump sum payout. As a result of this sinlglep sum payout, special settlement requirementeeiufFAS 88 have be
triggered. The second event resulted from speeratination benefits offered for a limited periodtihe to certain employees
the Motion Control segment who were subject toducgion in workforce with the Corporation duringd® Consistent with tt
requirements of FAS 88, this liability is to be sgoized when the employees accept the offer andutt@unt can be reasona
estimated. The Corporation does not expect to ianyrmaterial other benefit costs for the remaired&006.

Other Postretirement Benefit Plans
The components of the net postretirement benedit foo the three months ended September 30, 2002@05 were:

(In thousands)

Curtiss-Wright Plan EMD Plan
September 30, September 30,
2006 2005 2006 2005
Service cost $ - $ - 132 $ 46
Interest cos 12 12 40C 23C
Amortization of net (gain) loss (3 1 (139 (270
Net periodic benefit cos $ 9 $ 13 401 $ 6
The components of the net postretirement benedit fow the nine months ended September 30, 200@@08 were:
(In thousands
Curtiss-Wright Plan EMD Plan
September 30, September 30,
2006 2005 2006 2005
Service cost $ = $ = $ 397 $ 427
Interest cos 34 26 1,20 1,33¢
Amortization of net gain (8) (28) (392 (270
Net periodic benefit cost (incom $ 26 $ (2) $ 1,20¢ $ 1,49:
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During the nine months ended September 30, 20@6Ctrporation has paid $0.1 million and $1.4 millian the Curtis$/right

and EMD postretirement plans, respectively. Du20§6, the Corporation anticipates contributing $@illion and $1.9 million t

the postretirement plans, respectively.

In September of 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. E8ployers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and O

Postretirement Plans This Statement requires Companies to change hew report the funded status of their defined ht

pension and other postretirement benefit plandeim balance sheet. Please see Note 1 for thet@dtenpact on the Corporation.
9. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Diluted earnings per share were computed basedeoweighted average number of shares outstandirggatil potentially dilutiv
common shares. A reconciliation of basic to dilidbdres used in the earnings per share calculatamfollows:

(In thousands)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2006 2005 2006 2005
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 43,90: 43,37¢ 43,77¢ 43,20¢
Dilutive effect of stock options and deferred stadknpensation 43t 57C 475 574
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 44,33¢ 43,94¢ 44,25¢ 43,78(

There were no antidilutive shares for the threer@ind months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005.
10. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

The Corporation has five active employee shmsed compensation programs as explained in fudiail below, which incluc
non-qualified share options, employee stock purchase pptions, restricted stock units, performancaeshaand performan
restricted shares. Prior to January 1, 2006, theo@ation applied the intrinsic value method of Aenting Principles Boa
Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employgeand related interpretations in accounting farcktbased employe
awards. Accordingly, the Corporation did not redagrcompensation expense for the issuance ofguatified share options wi
an exercise price equal to the market value ofutiderlying common stock on the date of grant ordjptions granted under 1
employee stock purchase plan. As the requisiteicemperiod for performance shares, restricted stauks, and performan
restricted shares did not begin until after Jandar®006, no compensation cost was recorded im padods. Effective January
2006, the Corporation adopted FAS 123(R) usingntioglified prospective transition method and therefoas not restated pr
periods. Under this transition method, compensatiost associated with employee stock options ragzednin 2006 include
compensation expense related to the remaining tetwgmrtion of norgualified share options granted prior to Januar006
Additionally, FAS 123(R) requires that cash flowesulting from tax deductions in excess of compémsatost that had be
reflected as operating cash flows be reflectedrnas€ing cash flows.
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The compensation cost charged against income fptogi®e shardsased compensation programs during the three mamitishine montt

ended September 30, 2006 was $1.4 million, befaxest of $0.4 million, and $4.3 million, before taxef $1.2 million, respectively,
follows:

(In thousands)

Three Months Nine Months
Ended Ended
September 30, September 30,
2006 2006
Non-qualified share optior $ 77C  $ 2,40¢
Employee stock purchase optic 35E 96€
Performance shart 213 641
Performance restricted sha — —
Other share-based payments 65 31€
Total $ 1,402 $ 4,332
Net income impac $ 1,01t $ 3,087
EPS Impact:
Basic $ 0.0z $ 0.07
Diluted $ 0.0z $ 0.07

Other share-based payments include unrestricte stveards to employees and restricted stock awtardenemployee directors, who ¢
treated as employees as prescribed by FAS 123(R).cobmpensation cost recognized follows the cosh®femployee, which is primar
reflected as general and administrative expenséeeinnaudited consolidated statements of earnkhggost was capitalized during 2006.

Pro forma information regarding net earnings arrdiegs per share is required by FAS 123(R), anddeas determined as if the Corpora

had accounted for its employee ngualified share options and employee stock purcipéeae option grants under the fair value methc
prior periods. The Corporation’s pro forma resalts as follows:

(In thousands, except per share data)

Three Months Nine Months
Ended Ended
September 30, September 30,
2005 2005
Net earnings, as report: $ 17,51¢ $ 49,97¢
Add: Total share-based employee compensation mestf related tax effects, included in net income
as reportet — —
Deduct: Total share-based employee compensatidgrdetesmined under fair value based method
all awards, net of related tax effe (59¢) (1,795
Pro forma net earnings $ 16,92 $ 48,18
Net earnings per shat
As reported
Basic $ 04C $ 1.1¢
Diluted $ 04C $ 1.14
Pro forma:
Basic $ 03¢ $ 1.12
Diluted $ 03¢ $ 1.1C
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2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “2005 LTI Plan"yUnder the 2005 LTI Plan approved by stockholdergdf5 and effective as of M
19, 2005, an aggregate total of 5,000,000 sharg3oafmon stock were registered. Issuances of Constamk to satisfy employee opti
exercises will be made from the Corporat®ireasury stock. The Corporation does not exgentpgurchase any shares in 2006 to repl
treasury stock for issuances made to satisfy stqutlon exercises. No more than 200,000 shares ofif@n stock or 100,000 shares
restricted stock may be awarded in any year tocergyparticipant in the 2005 LTI Plan. Awards untter 2005 LTI Plan currently consist
four components — performance units (cash), qualified stock options, performance shares, anfopeance restricted shares. Det
regarding the performance units can be found irCiigoration’s 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Under the 2005 LTI Plan, the Corporation granted-goalified stock options in 2005 to key employeegar®s under the 2005 LTI Plan w
made in the fourth quarter of 2005. Stock optiorsted under the 2005 LTI Plan expire ten yeases dfte date of the grant and are gene
exercisable as follows: up to one-third of the gi&fiter one year, up to twihirds of the grant after two years, and in fulleth years from tt
date of grant.

Under the 2005 LTI Plan, the Corporation grantedgomance shares and performance restricted sharesrtain of the Corporatios’key
executives and are denominated in shares basetieofait market value of the CorporatisnCommon stock on the date of grant.
performance shares were granted to certain offigetise Corporation in the fourth quarter of 200l @re contingent upon the satisfactio
performance objectives keyed to achieving proféaiowth over a period of three fiscal years comeimenwith the fiscal year following su
award. The performance restricted shares were agtaiat certain key employees in the first quarte2@6 and are contingent upon
satisfaction of performance objectives keyed tdeaéhg certain operating income statistics in tlearyof grant are satisfied and the shar
common stock are subsequently restricted for aitiaddl two years.

As of September 30, 2006, there are 4.5 millionai@mg allowable shares for issuance under the 200%lan.

1995 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “1995 LTI PlanUnder the 1995 LTI Plan approved by stockholder$d85 and as amended in 2
and 2003, an aggregate total of 4,000,000 shar€oofmon stock were registered. Issuances of Constank to satisfy employee opti
exercises will be made from the Corporat®ireasury stock. The Corporation does not exgentgurchase any shares in 2006 to repl
treasury stock for issuances made to satisfy sbptlon exercises. No more than 100,000 shares ofran stock could be awarded in .
year to any one participant under the 1995 LTI Pkawvards under the 1995 LTI Plan consisted of thremponent— performance uni
(cash), non-qualified stock options, and remployee director grants. Details regarding thefoperance units can be found in
Corporation’s 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Under the 1995 LTI Plan, the Corporation granted-goalified stock options in 2004 and 2003 to key kEyges. Grants under the 1995
Plan were made in the fourth quarter of both ye@tsck options granted under the 1995 LTI Plan rexign years after the date of the g
and are generally exercisable as follows: up totbird of the grant after one year, up to tihirds of the grant after two years, and in
three years from the date of grant.

In May 2003, the Corporation’s Board of Directorsiastockholders approved an amendment to the 199®Plan to authorize noemploye:
directors to participate in the plan. The amendnpeavided that each noemployee director could receive the equivalent 15,800 of th
Corporations Common stock per year. The Board of Directors@amal and issued stock grants of 554 shares, 5@@shand 960 shares
2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively, of the Corpama Common stock to each of the eight remployee directors. The stock grants v
valued at $15,000 based on the market price o€trporation’s Common stock on the grant date ane wepensed at the time of issuance.
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During 2005, the 1995 LTI Plan was superseded by2(005 LTI Plan. The shares that were not yet éaunaler the 1995 LTI Plan we
deregistered and then registered under the 2005lar. There are no new awards being granted uhdet995 LTI Plan and no remain
allowable shares for future awards under the 19BbRlan. As of September 30, 2006 there were opti@presenting a total of 1.3 milli
shares outstanding under the 1995 plan.

Nor-Qualified Share Optionsthe fair value of the non-qualified share optioresvestimated at the date of grant using a B&atkeles optio
pricing model with the assumptions noted in théofeing table. Expected volatilities are based ostdrical volatility of the Corporatios’
stock and other factors. The Corporation uses figstiodata to estimate the expected term of optgnasited. The rislree rate for perioc
within the contractual life of the option is baswdthe U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at ihgetof grant.

2005 2004 2003
Risk-free interest rate 4.52% 3.8% 3.68%
Expected volatility 23.21% 31.3% 31.68%
Expected dividend yiel 0.8€% 0.64% 0.94%
Expected term (in year 7.C 7.C 7.C
Weighte-average gra-date fair value of optior $ 9.0¢ $ 10.72 $ 6.9¢

A summary of employee stock option activity under 2005 and 1995 LTI Plans are as follows:

Weighted-
Average
Remaining Aggregate
Weighted- Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Average Term in Value
(000's) Exercise Price Years (000's)
Outstanding at December 31, 2005 1,91¢ $ 18.21 7.1 $ 17,81:
Granted — —
Exercisec (215) 11.72
Forfeited/Cancelled (39 22.44
Outstanding at September 30, 2006 1,662 $ 18.9¢ 6.€ $ 18,94.
Exercisable at September 30, 2006 1,051 $ 14 .4¢ 54 $ 16,68¢

The total intrinsic value of stock options exerdisguring the first nine months of 2006 and 2005 W45 million and $7.6 milliol
respectively.

As noted above, non-qualified stock option awaraéeha graded vesting schedule. Compensation costagnized on a straightie basi:
over the requisite service period for each seplgratssting portion of each award as if each awaad vinsubstance, multiple awards. Dur
the third quarter of 2006, compensation cost aasedi with nongualified stock options of $0.8 million was chargexd expense. Tt
Corporation has applied a forfeiture assumptio%fin the calculation of such expense. As of Sept30, 2006, there was approxima
$1.8 million of unrecognized compensation costteglao non-vested stock options, which is expettee recognized over a weighted-
average period of 1.1 years.
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Cash received from option exercises during the firse months of 2006 and 2005 was $2.8 million $A@ million, respectively. The to
tax benefit generated from options granted priobézember 31, 2005, which were exercised durinditeenine months of 2006 and 20
was $1.7 million and $2.9 million, respectivelydamas credited to additional paid in capital.

Performance Shares, Restricted Stock Units, anfbReance Restricted ShareSince 2005, the Corporation has granted performahase
and performance restricted shares to certain eraploynder the 2005 LTI Plan, whose vesting is ngatit upon meeting varic
departmental and compamjee performance goals, including net income targafainst budget and as a percentage of salesshgapee
group and operating income as a percentage of aghenst budget. The naested shares are subject to forfeiture if employniseterminate
other than due to death, disability or retiremant the shares are nontransferable while subjdotfeiture.

In September 2006, the Corporation granted 65,848icted stock units to two key executives. Urttlerterms of the agreements, the st
will vest in 2016.

A summary of performance share, restricted stodksuand performance restricted share activity tfa first nine months of 2006 is
follows:

. Weighted-
Units Average Grant-
(000's) Date Fair Value
Nonr-vested at December 31, 2005 217 $27.9:
Granted 12¢ 30.4¢
Vested - -
Forfeited - -
Non-vested at September 30, 2006 34E $28.8"

The grantdate fair values of performance shares and perfaceaestricted shares are based on the market pfidbe stock, ar
compensation cost is amortized to expense on @lstiiine basis over the thrgear requisite service period and assumes that &Othte
performance shares and 100% of the performancectedtshares will be forfeited. As forfeiture asmtions change, compensation cost
be adjusted on a cumulative basis in the perioth®fassumption change. The grant date fair valbiisearestricted stock units are bases
the market price of the stock at the date of grant compensation cost is amortized to expense sira@htline basis over the requis
service period, which ranged from 9.4 years to }@drs. As of September 30, 2006, there was $4lbmof unrecognized compensat
cost related to nonvested performance shares atritted stock units, which is expected to be recoef over a period of 5.7 years.

Employee Stock Purchase PI: The Corporation’s 2003 Employee Stock Purchaae Rhe “ESPP"gnables eligible employees to purct
the Corporatiors Common stock at a price per share equal to 85#tedbwer of the fair market value of the Commutock at the beginnir
or end of each offering period. Each offering péraf the ESPP lasts six months, with the first ifig period commencing on Januan
2004. Participation in the offering is limited t0% of an employes’ base salary (not to exceed amounts allowed udeetion 423 of tt
Internal Revenue Code), may be terminated at ang thy the employee, and automatically ends on textion of employment with tl
Corporation. A total of 2,000,000 shares of Comratmtk have been reserved for issuance under th® EBfe Common stock to satisfy
stock purchases under the ESPP will be newly isshades of Common stock. During 2006, 195,536 shasxe purchased under the ES
As of September 30, 2006, there were 1.6 millioarses available for future offerings and the Corpiorahas withheld $1.4 million fro
employees, the equivalent of 52,000 shares. Comgienscost is recognized on a straight-line bager the sixmonth vesting period durii
which employees perform related services. The Qatjmn recognized $0.1 million of tax benefit asated with disqualifying dispositiol
during the first nine months of 2006.

The fair value of the employee stock purchase pfations was estimated at the date of grant usiBek-Scholes option pricing model w
the weighted-average assumptions noted in theviollp table. Expected volatilities are based ondhnisal volatility of the Corporatiors’
stock.
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The Corporation uses historical data to estimateettpected term of options granted. The fiske-rate for periods within the contractual
of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yielde in effect at the time of grant.

2006 2005 2004
Risk-free interest rate 4.82% 2.86% 1.3%%
Expected volatility 23.25% 30.9¢% 23.9%%
Expected dividend yiel 0.42% 0.3%% 0.35%
Expected term (in year 0.t 0.t 0.5
Weighte-average gra-date fair value of optior $ 6.52 $ 6.6¢€ $ 5.61

2005 Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directofithe Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors (“2@6ck Plan”)approved by the stockhold:
in 2005, provided for the grant of stock awards,atdhe option of the noemployee directors, the deferred payment of regstipulates
compensation and meeting fees in equivalent shaheder the 2005 Stock Plan, the Corporation’s eanployee directors each receive
annual restricted stock award, which is subjeet tbree year restriction period commencing on #te df the grant. For 2006, the value of
award granted in the first quarter was $50,000.s€hestricted stock awards are subject to forfeitlithe nonemployee director resigns
retires by reason of his or her decision not todt®r reelection prior to the lapsing of all restrictions)less the restrictions are otherv
removed by the Committee on Directors and Govemaitie cost of the restricted stock awards willaoeortized over the three yi
restriction period from the date of grant, or sstiorter restriction period as determined by theonahof such restrictions. Newly elec
non-employee directors also receive a time restricted stock award, which during 2006 wakied at $25,000 and awarded in the se
quarter. The total number of shares of Common séwellable for grant under the 2005 Stock Plan matyexceed 100,000 shares. Du
2006, the Corporation awarded 15,320 shares ofigeest stock under the 2005 Stock Plan, of which00,shares have been deferre:
certain directors.

1996 Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directofihe Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors (“1$6ck Plan”)approved by the stockhold
in 1996, authorized the grant of restricted stoslarals and, at the option of the nemployee directors, the deferred payment of re
stipulated compensation and meeting fees in eqivahares. Pursuant to the terms of the 1996 $taak nonemployee directors receiv
an initial restricted stock grant of 7,224 share§996, which became unrestricted in 2001. Addétilyn on the fifth anniversary of the init
grant, those non-employee directors who remaineah@mployee director received an additional restrictedk grant equal to the produc
increasing $13,300 at an annual rate of 2.96%, comged monthly from the effective date of the 1S#6ck Plan. In 2001, the amount
director was calculated to be $15,419, represemtit@gal additional grant of 3,110 restricted shaiiéhe cost of the restricted stock awart
being amortized over the fiwgear restriction period from the date of grantoPto the effective date of the 2005 Stock Planylpeslectec
non-employee directors received similar compensatitder the terms of the 1996 Stock Plan upon tleation to the Board.

Pursuant to election by namployee directors to receive shares in lieu ohpayt for earned and deferred compensation unde2@@g an
1996 Stock Plans, the Corporation had providedaforggregate additional 62,160 shares, at an averige of $19.83 as of September
2006. During 2006, the Corporation issued 7,184eshiim compensation pursuant to such elections.
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11. SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Corporation manages and evaluates its opesatiased on the products and services it offerstiaadlifferent markets

serves. Based on this approach, the Corporatiothihas reportable segments: Flow Control, Motiom@a, and Metal Treatmer

(I'n thousands)
Three Months Ended September 30, 2006

Flow Control Motion Control Metal Treatment Segment Totals Corporate & Other Consolidated Totals

Revenue from

external

customers $ 129,81¢ $ 125,63¢ $ 56,34: $ 311,80: $ - $ 311,80:
Intersegment

revenues - 584 23€ 82C (820) -
Operating

income 14,01« 15,31( 10,44¢ 39,77: (2,52)) 37,25!

(I'n thousands)
Three Months Ended September 30, 2005

Flow Control Motion Control Metal Treatment Segment Totals Corporate & Other Consolidated Totals

Revenue from

external

customers $ 112,12t $ 110,24. $ 4898° $ 27135 % - $ 271,35!
Intersegment

revenues - 24E 14z 387 (387) -
Operating

income 13,80( 11,20: 8,61¢ 33,621 (1,180 32,44:

(I'n thousands)
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2006

Flow Control Motion Control Metal Treatment Segment Totals Corporate & Other Consolidated Totals

Revenue from

external

customers $ 380,270 $ 356,49t $ 167,21' % 903,98{ $ - $ 903,98t
Intersegment

revenue: - 951 601 1,552 (1,559 -
Operating

income 36,90! 33,43¢ 31,63( 101,96° (7,020 94,94,

(I'n thousands)
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2005

Flow Motion Metal Segment Corporate Consolidated
Control Control Treatment Totals & Other Totals
Revenue from external
customers $ 335,86 $ 328,18l $ 148,99. $ 813,03 $ - $ 813,03!
Intersegment revenur - 521 38C 901 (907) -
Operating incom: 36,90¢ 30,33! 25,54 92,78: 32¢ 93,10¢

(I'n thousands)
Identifiable Assets

Flow Control Motion Control Metal Treatment Segment Totals Corporate & Other Consolidated Totals
September 30
2006 $ 501,15( $ 687,54: $ 216,28. $ 1,404,97. $ 82,227 $ 1,487,201
December 31,
2005 440,55( 653,03 194,31¢ 1,287,90. 112,38 1,400,28!
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Adjustments to reconcile to earnings before inctemes:

(I'n thousands)

Three months ended Nine months ended
September 30, September 30,
2006 2005 2006 2005
Total segment operating income $ 39,77: $ 33,62 $ 101,96 $ 92,78:
Corporate and administrati (2,527 (1,180 (7,020 (2,436
Gain on sale of Corporate real estate and fixeetass = e
Other income (expense), r (18) 27¢ 29t (421
Interest expense (5,727 (4,919 (17,109 (13,999
Earnings before income taxes $ 31,51 $ 27,80¢ $ 78,13¢ $ 78,69:

12. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Total comprehensive income for the three and ninaths ended September 30, 2006 and 2005 are aw$oll

(I'n thousands)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2006 2005 2006 2005
Net earning: $ 20,35¢ $ 17,51¢ $ 53,72¢ $ 49,976
Equity adjustment from foreign currency translasion 472 1,907 16,66 (13,579
Total comprehensive income $ 20,82¢ $ 19,42¢ $ 70,39! $ 36,39

The equity adjustment from foreign currency tratiska represents the effect of translating the asseid liabilities of th
Corporation’s non-U.S. entities. This amount is &aoied year-oveyear by foreign currency fluctuations and by thguasitions o
foreign entities.

13. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The Corporation, through its Flow Control segmdrats several Nuclear Regulatory Commission (“NRIZBnses necessary
the continued operation of its commercial nucleperations. In connection with these licenses, thRCNequired financi
assurance from the Corporation in the form of &pacompany guarantee, representing estimatedoemvental decommissioni
and remediation costs associated with the comniespirations covered by the licenses. The guardotethe decommissionit
costs of the refurbishment facility, which is pladnfor 2017, is $3.1 million.

The Corporation enters into standby letters of itragreements with financial institutions and castos primarily relating |
guarantees of repayment on certain Industrial RexeBonds, future performance on certain contraxtprovide products ai
services, and to secure advance payments the @tigpohas received from certain international cometis. At September <
2006, and December 31, 2005 the Corporation hatinggemt liabilities on outstanding letters of crtedi $20.4 million and $32
million, respectively.

The Corporation is party to a number of legal adiand claims, none of which individually or in thggregate, in the opinion
management, are expected to have a material ade#ese on the Corporation’s results of operationéinancial position.

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Early in the fourth quarter, the Corporation rebzhs tax reserve associated with the sale of aefofacility as a result of tl
expiration of the statute of limitations. The impaa the fourth quarter of 2006 is $1.5 milliont pétax.
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PART | - ITEM 2
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS of
FINANCIAL CONDITION and RESULTS of OPERATIONS

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Except for historical information, this Quarterlyport on Form 10-Q may be deemed to contain “foswaoking” information. Examples 1
forwarddooking information include, but are not limited, {@) projections of or statements regarding returrinvestment, future earnin
interest income, other income, earnings or lossshare, growth prospects, capital structure, ahdrdinancial terms, (b) statements of p
and objectives of management, (c) statements ofdweconomic performance, and (d) statements ahgssons, such as economic conditi
underlying other statements. Such forward-lookimfgrimation can be identified by the use of forwéydking terminology such as “believes,”
“expects,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “anticipates,”or the negative of any of the foregoing or othaiatéons or comparable terminology, or
discussion of strategy. No assurance can be ghegnthe future results described by the forwlaaking information will be achieved. St
statements are subject to risks, uncertainties, athdr factors, which could cause actual resultgliffter materially from future resul
expressed or implied by such forward-looking infation. Such statements in this Quarterly Reporffarm 10€ include, without limitatior
those contained in (a) Item 1. Financial Statemants(b) Item 2. ManagemestDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionl &esult
of Operations. Important factors that could calseactual results to differ materially from thosehese forwardeoking statements incluc
among other items, the Corporatisnsuccessful execution of internal performance laperformance issues with key suppli
subcontractors, and business partners; the atilihegotiate financing arrangements with lendexgall proceedings; changes in the nee
additional machinery and equipment and/or in thst dor the expansion of the Corporatisroperations; ability of outside third partie:
comply with their commitments; adverse labor acignvolving key customers or suppliers; product dachand market acceptance risks
effect of economic conditions and fluctuations amefign currency exchange rates; the impact of céithge products and pricing; prodt
development, commercialization, and technologidficdlties; social and economic conditions anddbregulations in theountries in whic
the Corporation conducts its businesses; unantaipanvironmental remediation expenses or claimpacity and supply constraints
difficulties; an inability to perform customer coatts at anticipated cost levels; changing prisitor reductions in the U.S. Governn
defense budget; contract continuation and futurgraot awards; U.S. and international military bedgonstraints and determinations;
factors discussed under the caption “Risk Factorghe Corporation’s Annual Report on Form KGer the year ended December 31, 2
and other factors that generally affect the busimnésompanies operating in the Corporation’s marked/or industries.

The Corporation assumes no obligation to updatedd-looking statements to reflect actual resultstmnges in or additions to the factors
affecting such forward-looking statements.
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COMPANY ORGANIZATION

We are a diversified, multinational provider of lhig engineered, technologically advanced, vadded products and services to a b
range of industries in the motion control, flow toh and metal treatment markets. We are positicaea market leader across a divers
array of niche markets through engineering andnelclyical leadership, precision manufacturing, simdng relationships with our custom
We provide products and services to a number dialmarkets, such as defense, commercial aerospagenercial power, oil and g
automotive, and general industrial. We have achiebalanced growth through the successful applinatib our core competencies
engineering and precision manufacturing, adaptiege competencies to new markets through interodlpt development and a disciplii
program of strategic acquisitions. Our overalltsigg is to be a balanced and diversified compaggs lulnerable to cycles or downturn
any one business sector, and to establish strositjgees in profitable niche markets. Approximat&@% of our revenues are generated |
defense-related markets.

We manage and evaluate our operations based @rdbacts and services we offer and the differedtigtries and markets we serve. B
on this approach, we have three reportable segmelu Control, Motion Control, and Metal Treatmefbr further information on o
products and services and the major markets sdryedir three segments, please refer to our AnnepbR on Form 10k for the year ende
December 31, 2005.

RESULTS of OPERATIONS

Analytical definitions

Throughout management’s discussion and analydisaricial condition and results of operations, tifrens “incremental” and “baselre use
to explain changes from period to period. The téimaremental”is used to highlight the impact acquisitions hadtwn current year resul
for which there was no comparable prior-year peridterefore, the results of operations for acqois# are “incrementalfor the first twelvi
months from the date of acquisition. The remairbnginesses are referred to as the “bésminesses, and growth in these base busine:
referred to as “organic.During 2006, we redefined the method of calculatonganic growth by including the results of opeva$ fo
acquisitions in the base business after twelvenfalhths of ownership.

Therefore, for the nine months ended Septembe2@W6, our organic growth calculations exclude tperations of the 2006 acquisitions
well as the first two months of operations durif@p@ of Indal Technologies, which was acquired imrdha2005. For the three months en
September 30, 2006, our organic growth calculatiexdude the operations of the 2006 acquisitiorieesé excluded results of operati
from the organic calculation are considered “inczatal”.

Three months ended September 30, 2006

Sales for the third quarter of 2006 totaled $3Iiion, an increase of 15% from sales of $271.4iom for the third quarter of 2005. Ne
orders received for the current quarter of $324illian were up 17% from new orders of $277.2 miflior the third quarter of 2005. T
acquisitions made in 2006 contributed $10.0 millieincremental new orders received in the thirdrtgr of 2006. Backlog increased 119
$893.4 million at September 30, 2006 from $805.8ioni at December 31, 2005. The acquisitions madend 2006 represented $1
million of the backlog at September 30, 2006. Apprately 62% of our backlog is defense-related.

Sales growth for the third quarter of 2006, as carag to the same period last year, was driven fopgtorganic growth in all three of ¢
operating segments and the contribution of the 286@uisitions. Our Motion Control, Flow Control amdetal Treatment segmel
experienced organic sales growth of 14%, 11%, &adrBspectively, while the 2006 acquisitions cdmitéd $7.8 million in incremental sa
during the third quarter of 2006.
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In our base businesses, higher sales to the griefetse, oil and gas, commercial aerospace, andrpgemeration markets drove our org
sales growth. Sales of our Motion Control segneathbedded computing products provided the majofithe $8.2 million improvement
the ground defense market. Our Flow Control segmeartker valve products continued to penetrate thend gas market, and contribu
significantly to our $7.7 million increase in thisarket. Global original equipment manufacturer (DT products, spares, and repair
overhaul services revenues were up in our Motiomt®b segment, the main contributor to the $7.0liaml increase in the commerc
aerospace market. Sales to the power generatioketfaom our Flow Control Segment drove the $6.8iom increase to this market, due
timing of plant outages. In addition, foreign cuntg translation favorably impacted sales by $3.lliani for the quarter ended September
2006, compared to the prior year period.

Operating income for the third quarter of 2006 leda$37.3 million, an increase of 15% over the $3®illion in the third quarter of 20C
Overall operating income increased 14%, organicétlythe same comparable prior year period dugigber sales volumes, favorable s
mix, and cost control initiatives. Our three busimsegments produced overall organic operatingrisagrowth of 18% in the third quarter
2006 as compared to the third quarter of 2005 edriprimarily by our Motion Control segment, whickperienced organic operating incc
growth of 37% due mainly to increased sales volumeyroved performance on long term contracts, acdeiased efficiencies as a resu
our business integration initiatives within our esdded computing division. Our Metal Treatment segnmexperienced organic operat
income growth of 20% mainly due to higher salesurr@d, while our Flow Control segmesitbrganic operating income increased slic
compared to the prior year period, as higher saddsme was offset by business integration costiauanable sales mix, and higher mate
costs. Our 2006 acquisitions generated incremeptaiating income of $0.2 million in the third quearbf 2006.

Operating income in the third quarter of 2006 amgared to the prior year period included higheregehand administrative costs relate
the adoption of FAS 123(R), which lowered operatingopme by $1.1 million, and $0.8 million of highpension expense related to
CurtissWright pension plans. Foreign currency translatiad minimal impact on operating income for thedhjuarter of 2006, as compa
to the prior year period.

Net earnings for the third quarter of 2006 tote#2@.4 million, or $0.46 per diluted share, an iase of 16% as compared to net earning
the third quarter of 2005 of $17.5 million, or $0.ger diluted share. Higher interest rates, pdytifset by lower average debt outstand
led to higher net interest expense of $0.5 milliothe third quarter of 2006 as compared to thedthuarter of 2005.

Nine months ended September 30, 2

Sales for the first nine months of 2006 totaled4b00million, an increase of 11% from sales of $818illion for same period last year. N
orders received for the first nine months of $97®i8ion were up 10% over the new orders of $88&ilion for the first nine months
2005. The acquisitions made in 2005 and 2006 darted $21.8 million in incremental new orders reediin the first nine months of 2006.

Organic sales growth of 9% for the first nine mantii 2006, as compared to the same period last wear driven by our Flow Control a
Metal Treatment segments, which experienced orggmieth of 11% and 9%, respectively, compared @ophior year period. Our Motic
Control segmens organic sales increased 7% in the first nine hsonf 2006 as compared to the prior year periotesSar the first nin
months of 2006 also benefited from the 2005 and2@@uisitions, which contributed $18.6 millionimcremental sales.

In our base businesses, higher sales to the oijasdcommercial aerospace, and ground defenseetaahtove our organic sales growth.
Flow Control segmens’ coker valve products continued to penetrate thend gas market, and contributed significanthythe $23.4 milliol
increase in this market.
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Global original equipment manufacturer (“OEM3)oducts, spares, and repair and overhaul servgsesnues in our Motion Control segm
were the main contributor to the $21.4 million e&se in the commercial aerospace market. Salag dflation Control segmerg’embedde
computing products provided the majority of the $1dillion improvement in the ground defense marketreign currency translation f
minimal impact on sales for the first nine montfif@06, compared to the prior year period.

Operating income for the first nine months of 2a06&led $94.9 million, up 2% over the $93.1 millinom the same period last ye
Operating income for the first nine months of 2008luded a gain of $2.8 million related to the safea noneperating property. Over
organic operating income increased 3% for the firse months of 2006 compared to the same perid®D@%b as organic operating incc
growth of 11% in our three business segments wasalha offset by increased pension and other coafo costs. Our Metal Treatm
segment experienced organic operating income graivtt?2% due mainly to the incremental margin onhkigsales volume. Our Moti
Control segment experienced organic operating ircgrowth of 13% mainly due to higher sales voluimgrovement on longerm contrac
performance, and increased efficiencies as a re$utr business integration initiatives within e@mbedded computing division. Our Fl
Control segmens organic operating income increased 2%, as highlames were offset by business integration castigvorable sales mi
and higher material costs. Additionally, our 20@Gusitions experienced an operating loss of $1lllomin the first nine months of 2006 d
to business integration costs and timing of theitracts.

Additionally, operating income in the first nine nths of 2006 as compared to the prior year penotlided higher general and administre
costs related to the adoption of FAS 123(R), wHimlvered operating income by $3.4 million. Foreigxcleange translation advers
impacted operating income by $2.5 million for tivstfnine months of 2006, mainly due to the strbeging of the Canadian dollar earlie
the year, as compared to the prior year period.

Corporate and other costs increased $7.3 millios ainly to higher pension expense of $3.6 millielated to the Curtisg/right pensiol
plans, and the first quarter 2005 gain of $2.8iarilbn the sale of a non operating facility that dot recur in 2006.

Net earnings for the first nine months of 2006 leda$53.7 million, or $1.21 per diluted share, naréase of 8% as compared to the
earnings for the first nine months of 2005 of $5Miion, or $1.14 per diluted share. Our effectte& rate for the first nine months of 2(
was favorably impacted by tax benefits of $2.0 illrelating to research and development creddamfour Canadian operations and
impact of a Canadian tax law change enacted duh@gecond quarter of 2006, which resulted in & $iillion favorable adjustment. Higt
interest rates, partially offset by lower averagstanding debt, led to higher interest expens&2dd million, net after tax, in the first ni
months of 2006 as compared to the prior year period
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Segment Operating Performance:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
% %
2006 2005 Change 2006 2005 Change

Sales:
Flow Control $ 129,819 $ 112,126 158%  $ 380,277 $ 335,863 13.2%
Motion Control 125,639 110,242 14.0% 356,496 328,180 8.6%
Metal Treatment 56,343 48,987 15.0% 167,215 148,992 12.2%
Total Sales $ 311,801 $ 271,355 149%  $ 903,988 $ 813,035 11.2%
Operating Income:
Flow Control $ 14,014 $ 13,800 16% $ 36,901 $ 36,905 0.0%
Motion Control 15,310 11,203 36.7% 33,436 30,331 10.2%
Metal Treatment 10,448 8,618 21.2% 31,630 25,547 23.8%
Total Segment 39,772 33,621 18.3% 101,967 92,783 9.9%
Corporate & Other (2,521) (1,180) 113.6 % (7,020) 323 -2273.4%
Total Operating Income $ 37,251 $ 32,441 148% $ 94,947 $ 93,106 2.0%
Operating Margins:
Flow Control 10.8% 12.3% 9.7% 11.0%
Motion Control 12.2% 10.2% 9.4% 9.2%
Metal Treatment 18.5% 17.6% 18.9% 17.1%
Total Curtiss-Wright 11.9% 12.0% 10.5% 11.5%

Flow Control

Sales for the Corporatiom’Flow Control segment increased 16% to $129.8anilfor the third quarter of 2006 from $112.1 naitli in the
third quarter of 2005. The 2006 acquisitions canttéd $5.0 million in incremental sales in the dhijuarter of 2006, while organic se
growth was 11%. The organic sales growth was drprémarily by increased sales to the oil and ga$ @mmercial power markets of $
million and $5.6 million, respectively, as compatedhe prior year period. Defense sales remaitetdd the prior period. Approximately h
of the increased sales to the oil and gas markes waven by continued high demand for our cokdwergproducts. Other valve and fii
service sales to the oil and gas market were glsover the third quarter 2005, due to increasedalsgpending and repair and maintens
expenditures by refineries as they continue to shye increase capacity and improve plant effidesicSales in our commercial po
generation business were driven by strong demarnheimuclear power market due to timing of plantages. Though sales to the defe
market were flat to the prior period, there wereveroents within the sector. Revenues to the U.SyNare up $1.2 million over the pr
year period due to a $5.4 million increase in tingintg of pump and generator production work on C¥ixtraft carriers, higher sales
generic electronics products of $1.4 million, andréase in electrmechanical spares revenue of $1.0 million. Paytiaffsetting thes
increases was a $6.0 million decrease in pump andrgtor sales for submarines due to timing ofrectg. Additionally, sales to the grot
defense market decreased $2.2 million from therpréar due to less development work on the U.S.yAsrelectromagnetic (“EM”)gur
program. Sales of this segment also benefited flavorable foreign currency translation of $0.4 il in the third quarter of 2006
compared to the prior year period.

Operating income for the third quarter of 2006 B24.0 million, slightly higher than the $13.8 molhi for the same period last year. The Z
acquisitions had a minimal impact on operating meoduring the third quarter of 2006 due to busiriesgration costs. The segment’
organic operating income was flat to the prior yeaiod as higher sales volume was partially offsebigher material costs and new prot
manufacturing start up costs. Additionally, in térd quarter of 2005, the segment reached a sedtie with the seller of a previou
acquired business, resulting in $0.9 million of igtieg income that did not recur in 2006. Offsejtthis margin impact were lower rese:
and development costs of
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$0.8 million due to government funding of previgusixpensed research costs for new programs. Forigency translation favorat
impacted this segment’s operating income by $0liomiin the third quarter of 2006 as comparedh® prior year.

Sales for the first nine months of 2006 were $386ilBon, an increase of 13% over the same perasd year of $335.9 million. Acquisitio
contributed $7.9 million to this segmesnales during the first nine months of 2006. Tégngent experienced organic growth of 11% ir
first nine months of 2006 as compared to the pre@r period primarily resulting from higher saleghe oil and gas market of $20.5 milli
higher sales to the U.S. Navy of $9.6 million, drigher sales to the power generation market of #8l8n. Revenues derived from the
and gas market were driven by our coker valve sahésh increased 60% in the first nine months d@&60ersus the prior year, as the prod
continue to gain greater acceptance in the marcabar installed base continues to perform welhedvalve and field service revenues tc
oil and gas market were up $7.5 million over thensaperiod in 2005 due to increased capital spendimg) repair and maintenai
expenditures by refineries as they continue toshweoney to increase capacity and improve plamtieffcies. The higher sales to the |
Navy were mainly driven by increased generator@umdp sales of $17.1 million for use on the CVN mifccarrier and higher generator s.
of $2.5 million for use on submarines, both dueh® timing of contracts. Sales to the U.S. Navyirduthe first nine months of 2006 w
also positively impacted by a $3.4 million increa$espares and repair work, higher sales of geraectronic products of $2.9 million, &
$2.1 million of additional developmental work, asngared to the prior year period. Partially offiggftthese improvements were loy
overall pump sales of $14.5 million to the U.S. Mas we wind down on existing submarine contrdotser sales of $2.1 million for bi
valves used on the Virginia-class submarines, anei sales of $1.3 million for the JP-5 fuel tramsfalves used on Nimitzlass nucle:
aircraft carriers. Sales in our commercial powerggation business, which is driven by customer teaimnce schedules, were up versus
year due to strong demand from the nuclear powekehaSales also benefited from favorable foreigrrency translation of $0.6 million
the first nine months of 2006, as compared to émeesperiod last year.

Operating income for the first nine months of 20@&s $36.9 million, which was flat to the first ningonths of 2005 operating incor
Acquisitions lowered operating income by $0.7 noilliin the first nine months of 2006 due to businessgration costs. The segm
achieved organic growth of 2% due to higher sal@lsmae and increased plant efficiencies, offset fgréased material costs, additic
research and development investments, and incressiédg and infrastructure expenditures to supmoganic growth. Research ¢
development spending increased $1.2 million overptfior year as we position ourselves to take atdggmof the anticipated increase in fu
commercial nuclear power projects. Foreign curremnagslation positively impacted this segmentperating income by $0.2 million in -
first nine months of 2006 as compared to the préar.

New orders received for the Flow Control segmetdléal $109.9 million in the third quarter of 2006da$404.9 million for the first nir
months of 2006, representing an increase of 11%18%d from the same periods in 2005, respectivehe acquisitions made in 2C
contributed $7.3 million in incremental new ordegseived in the third quarter of 2006. The increiaserders for the third quarter of 2(
was within the oil and gas markets where the placerof orders is dependant of the timing of schedlaind unscheduled refinery shutdoy
Backlog increased 7% to $459.9 million at Septen3@er2006 from $429.3 million at December 31, 200% acquisitions made during 2(
represented $13.5 million of the backlog at Septm30, 2006.

Motion Control

Sales for our Motion Control segment increased 1d%125.6 million in the third quarter of 2006 frdt10.2 million in the third quarter
2005, all due to organic sales growth. The organles growth was primarily due to higher salesroftigd defense products and comme
aerospace partially offset by lower sales of gdniedustrial and defense aerospace products. Grdefiehse product sales increased §$
million driven by higher sales of embedded compmytinoducts for the Bradley Fighting Vehicle on e&sed demand resulting from the
effort, and also due to new program sales of emégadmputing products on the U.S. ArmyArmored Security Vehicle and the Ful
Combat System. Commercial aerospace sales incr§asgdillion largely due to 737 actuation systeand
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other new programs with Boeing, as well as incréasdes of smoke detection and other sensor pradBattially offsetting these increa
were lower sales of controller products to the gainedustrial markets of $2.6 million, as a primaustomer for these products in Eur
continued its transition to iheuse production. We expect this trend to contitweughout 2006, however, we do not believe the tfsthis
customer will have a material impact on the salesperating profit of the Corporation or this segindn addition, sales to the defe
aerospace market decreased $2.0 million, due intpaeduced customer requirements and lower gifim the weapons bay door systt
used on the P2 and reduced sales of radar warning devices amethe Blackhawk helicopter. Foreign currency thatien favorabl
impacted sales for the third quarter of 2006 by $iillion as compared to the prior year period.

Operating income for the third quarter of 2006 #45.3 million, an increase of 37% over the saméofdast year of $11.2 million, all
which is organic. The benefit of the higher salekime and increased efficiencies as a result oboginess integration initiatives within «
embedded computing division were partially offsgtumfavorable sales mix resulting from lower saésigher margin programs such as
F-22 and the European controllers business, increasedrial costs, and the ramp up of new programsddition, the third quarter of 1
prior year was negatively impacted by 767 tankegpm cost overruns, increased quality inspectiqurerses, and higher costs relative tc
start up of the AN-APR39 Radar Warning System paogrwhich did not recur in 2006. The business segim@perating income was a
adversely impacted by foreign currency translatbapproximately $0.4 million in the third quarifr2006, as compared to the third que
of 2005, mainly due to the strengthening of the dziém dollar.

Sales for the first nine months of 2006 were $356illion, an increase of 9% from sales of $328.2iam during the first nine months
2005, primarily due to organic growth of 7% and doatribution of the 2005 acquisition, which cobtried $5.9 million in incremental sal
Organic sales growth in the first nine months d@Was mainly due to higher sales to the commeagedspace industry of $16.3 million i
to the ground defense market of $15.7 million, ipHyt offset by lower sales to the general indwdtand defense aerospace markets of
million, in the aggregate. Sales of various actratind sensor products to original aircraft OEMséaased $9.8 million due to additional ¢
set requirements of 737 actuation systems and otber programs with Boeing, and to our customéisteasing order base. Repair
overhaul sales increased $4.1 million due to thaticoing recovery of the commercial aerospace itrgusSales of embedded compult
products to the defense ground market increaseds §b8lion, primarily due to spares sales for theadley Fighting Vehicle and ne
production orders for the Armored Security Vehided development work related to the Future Corlyatem, partially offset by low
redesign and production work for the mobile gurtesys Offsetting these improvements were lower safesensor products on spaedate(
programs and lower sales of controller productshto general industrial as a primary customer fes¢hproducts in Europe continuec
transition to inhouse production. Foreign currency translation &aginimal impact on sales for the first nine momth2006 as compared
the prior year period.

Operating income for the first nine months of 2006 $33.4 million, an increase of 10% over the spared last year of $30.3 million. T
2005 acquisition experienced an incremental losk0d million for the first nine months of 2006 dwwedelays in timing of their contracts ¢
from margin erosion due to changes in foreign erghaates on certain foreign currency denominatedracts. Organic growth of 13% v
achieved through the higher sales volume, notedegbend increased efficiencies as a result of agimess integration initiatives within ¢
embedded computing division, partially offset byaworable sales mix resulting from lower sales ighkr margin programs such as th@Z-
and the European controllers business, increaségtiadecosts, and the ramp up of new programsdtiit@n, research and development ¢
decreased $3.3 million due to a reallocation ofieeering efforts to work on customer funded develept programs, where costs
classified as cost of goods sold, and the reatinadi the integration initiatives. The businessnsegt’s operating income was also adver
impacted by foreign currency translation of $2.9liom in the first nine months of 2006, as compatedhe comparable period of 20
mainly due to the strengthening of the Canadiatadol
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New orders received for the Motion Control segmetaled $158.0 million in the third quarter of 20@% increase of 21% from the s¢
period last year, and $403.6 million for the finihe months of 2006, representing an increase 0bvés the comparable period of 2005.
quarterly and year-tdate increases were largely due to significant feu€@ombat System development contract awards medeiuring th
third quarter of 2006. Year-tdate comparisons were also impacted by contra@rsribr defense aerospace actuation systems ifirsit
quarter of 2005 that did not repeat in 2006 andeloerders in the European controllers businesstdube aforementioned customer I
Backlog increased 15% to $431.1 million at Septem3fe 2006 from $374.5 million at December 31, 2005

Metal Treatment

Sales for the Corporatios’Metal Treatment segment totaled $56.3 milliontfa third quarter of 2006, up 15% when compareith $#49.(
million in the third quarter of 2005. The 2006 aisifion contributed $2.8 million of incremental salduring the third quarter of 2006, wl
organic sales growth was 9%. The organic salesdwgment is mainly due to strong sales growth fram global shot peening servic
which contributed $2.3 million, and higher heattieg sales of $1.4 million. Shot peening salesegased primarily due to higher sales tc
commercial and defense aerospace markets and ngadestin the power generation, general industaiad] oil and gas markets. Sales grc
in the European automotive market was offset byiced volumes in the North American automotive markieat treating sales experien
increases in the automotive market as the divismmtinues to benefit from strengthening economitdiions. Foreign currency translat
favorably impacted sales for the third quarter @& by $1.0 million as compared to the prior yeanigal.

Operating income for the third quarter of 2006 &ased 21% to $10.4 million from $8.6 million foretsame period last year. Orge
operating income growth for the third quarter 00@@vas 20%, while the 2006 acquisition contribus82 million of incremental operati
income in the third quarter of 2006. Overall margnprovement was due mainly to the higher salesimel primarily in our heat treati
division, which benefited from increased produdyiviOperating expenses remained essentially flat gercentage of sales period over pe
Foreign currency translation had a favorable impattthis segmerd’ operating income of $0.2 million for the thirdagter of 2006 ¢
compared to the prior year period.

Sales for the Corporation’Metal Treatment segment totaled $167.2 milliontfe first nine months of 2006, up 12% when coragawitt
$149.0 million for the comparable period of 200622006 acquisition contributed $4.9 million oframental sales in the first nine month
2006, while organic sales growth was 9%. The ogrowth was due to strong sales from our globat pkening services, which contribu
$7.8 million, and higher heat treating sales of3%dillion. Shot peen forming services on wing skfos Airbus drove the commerc
aerospace market sales increase of $3.4 millioflevelales of shot peening services to the North #ecaa defense markets increased
million. Shot peening sales also experienced sgd@ss in the oil and gas and power generation ntsrikeéhile sales growth in the Europ:
automotive and general industrial markets wereetftsy reduced volumes in the same North Americamkets. Heat treating sa
experienced increases across all markets servedodsigengthening economic conditions. The mostigant gains were in the gene
industrial and automotive markets, which increa$&é® million and $1.3 million, respectively. Theatimgs division experienced orga
growth of $1.4 million primarily from the commerti@erospace market on increased customer productinew aircraft. In addition, forei
currency translation adversely impacted saleshfeffitst nine months of 2006 by $0.4 million, asngared to the prior year period.

Operating income for the first nine months of 208&eased 24% to $31.6 million from $25.5 milliar the same period last year. Orgi
operating income growth for the first nine monthi{@06 was 22% over the same period in 2005, wh#e2006 acquisition contributed $
million of incremental operating income to the firdne months of 2006. The operating income growd#s primarily due to the varial
contribution to gross margins of the higher volumeted above. Operating expenses remained esgefidslas a percentage of sales pe
over period. Additionally, the segment was advgrémipacted from unfavorable foreign currency tratish in the first nine months of 2C
of $0.2 million, as compared to the prior year péri
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New orders received for the Metal Treatment segrtetated $56.3 million in the third quarter of 2086d $167.7 million for the first nii
months of 2006, representing increases of 18% &A@ ftom the same periods in 2005, respectively. ddwiisition made in 2006 contribu
$2.8 million and $4.9 million in incremental newders received in the third quarter and first ninenths of 2006, respectively. Back
increased 27% to $2.4 million at September 30, Z6@6 $1.9 million at December 31, 2005.

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased $0.8 million and $3ltlomifor the third quarter and first nine months2006, respectively, versus the compar
prior year periods. The increases were due to higiterest rates partially offset by lower averaggstanding debt. Our average borrov
rate increased 70 basis points and 90 basis plointBe third quarter and first nine months of 2@36compared to the comparable prior
periods, respectively. Average outstanding debredmed 3% and 2% for the three months and ninehmamded September 30, 2(
respectively, as compared to the comparable paar periods.

CHANGES IN FINANCIAL CONDITION

We derive the majority of our operating cash inflimm receipts on the sale of goods and servicdscash outflow for the procurement
materials and labor and are therefore subject trkebhdluctuations and conditions. A substantialtipor of our business is in the defe
market, which is characterized predominantly bygkt&rm contracts. Most of our lorigrm contracts allow for several billing pointsdgres
or milestones) that provide us with cash receigtg@sts are incurred throughout the project ratha&n upon contract completion, ther
reducing working capital requirements. In some sag®se payments can exceed the costs incurragmject.

Operating Activities

Our working capital was $328.2 million at SeptemB@y 2006, an increase of $59.2 million from the'kirgy capital at December 31, 200¢
$269.0 million. The ratio of current assets to entriabilities was 2.5 to 1 at September 30, 2086us 2.2 to 1 at December 31, 2005. |
and cash equivalents totaled $47.4 million at Saptr 30, 2006, down from $59.0 million at Decem®&r 2005. Days sales outstandin
September 30, 2006 were 53 days as compared taayS8 at December 31, 2005. Inventory turns werefdr.&he nine months end
September 30, 2006 as compared to 5.6 at Decerih@035.

Excluding cash, working capital increased $70.9iomlfrom December 31, 200partially due to the 2006 acquisitions. The remairaf the
increase was driven primarily by increases in itggnand receivables. Inventory increased $30.3ianildue to build up for fourth quar
sales, stocking of long lead time material for nqeswwgrams, and increased material costs, while vabts increased $21.7 million due
higher sales volume, an increase in long-term estgraccounted for under the percentageenfipletion method, and strong collections ir
fourth quarter of 2005. These increases to recgahnd inventory were offset by an increase iredefl revenue of $9.2 million frc
favorable billing terms on certain commercial ara/grnmental contracts. Additionally, accounts pagand accrued expenses decre
$16.1 million due to lower days payable outstanding the payments of annual compensation plarseifirst quarter of 2006 while incol
taxes payable decreased 13.8 million due to teedinarter payment of our 2005 taxes and the 260@ated tax payments.
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS of
FINANCIAL CONDITION and RESULTS of OPERATIONS, cont inued

I nvesting Activities

The Corporation acquired three businesses in terfine months of 2006. Funds available underGbeporations credit agreement we
utilized for funding the purchase price of the asijions, which totaled $34.8 million. Additionatauisitions will depend, in part, on 1
availability of financial resources at a cost opital that meets stringent criteria. As such, fatacquisitions, if any, may be funded thro
the use of the Corporatioi’cash and cash equivalents, through additionah&iimg available under the credit agreement, autjin nev
financing alternatives. As indicated in Note 2 e tConsolidated Financial Statements of our 2006uah Report on Form 1K certair
acquisition agreements contain contingent purclpaee adjustments, such as potential eauhpayments. During the first nine month:
2006, the Corporation made $4.5 million in earn{magments.

Capital expenditures were $27.9 million in thetfim;e months of 2006. Principal expenditures ideld new and replacement machinery
equipment and the expansion of new product linghiwithe business segments. We expect to makei@ualitcapital expenditures
approximately $10 million during the remainder @08 on machinery and equipment for ongoing openatiat the business segme
expansion of existing facilities, and investmentaéw product lines and facilities.

Financing Activities

During the first nine months of 2006, we used $2®ilion in available credit under the Revolvingedit Agreement to fund investi
activities. The unused credit available under tegdiviing Credit Agreement at September 30, 2006 $@49.0 million. The Revolving Cre:
Agreement expires in July 2009. Additionally, wevbaeclassified $5.0 million of debt due under 820nhdustrial Revenue Bond to short-
term debt. We believe funds from operations willshifficient to satisfy the obligation in the firgtiarter of 2007. The loans outstanding u
the 2003 and 2005 Notes, Revolving Credit Agreemand Industrial Revenue Bonds had fixed and vhrialierest rates averaging 5.
during the third quarter of 2006 and 4.7% for tbenparable prior year period.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our consolidated financial statements and accomipgmpotes are prepared in accordance with accayiptiimciples generally accepted in
United States of America. Preparation of theseestahts requires us to make estimates and assusiptianaffect the reported amount:
assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses. TéstBnates and assumptions are affected by thecafiph of our accounting policies. Criti
accounting policies are those that require apptinatf managemerg’most difficult, subjective, or complex judgmertdften as a result of t
need to make estimates about the effects of maifeatsare inherently uncertain and may change bseguent periods. A summary
significant accounting policies and a descriptibaacounting policies that are considered critioaly be found in our 2005 Annual Repor
Form 10K, filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Cassion on March 7, 2006, in the Notes to the Cadattéd Financial Statemer
Note 1, and the Critical Accounting Policies settiof Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiord @Results ¢
Operations.

Recently issued accounting standards:

In February 2006, the Financial Accounting Standd&dard (FASB) issued Statement of Financial ActiogrStandards No. 158ccounting
for Certain Hybrid Financial Instrumeni- an amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 angd'$&2S No. 155”).SFAS No. 155 permits
fair value remeasurement for any hybrid finanangtiument that contains an embedded derivativevibatd otherwise require bifurcatic
This accounting standard is effective as of theirbegg of fiscal years beginning after September 286. We do not anticipate that
adoption of this statement will have a material &titpon our results of operation or financial coiogit

Page 32 of 36




CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS of
FINANCIAL CONDITION and RESULTS of OPERATIONS, cont inued

In March 2006, the FASB issued the Statement oérféral Accounting Standards No. 12&counting for Servicing of Financial Assets
amendment of FASB Statements No.(18BAS No. 156”).SFAS No. 156 requires that servicing assets arvicasy liabilities be recognize
at fair value, if practicable, when we enter intseavicing agreement and allows two alternativies,amortization and fair value measurer
methods, as subsequent measurement methods. Ehisnéiag standard is effective for all new tranEac occurring as of the beginning
fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2006.d¢/@ot anticipate that the adoption of this staentwill have a material impact on «
results of operation or financial condition.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation N¢.A&8ounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxean Interpretation of FASB Statement
109 (“FIN 48"). FIN 48 prescribes a more likely than not thresHotdfinancial statement recognition and measureroéattax position take
or expected to be taken in a tax return. This pretation also provides guidance on derecognitibincome tax assets and liabiliti
classification of current and deferred income tage#s and liabilities, accounting for interest gmhalties associated with tax positic
accounting for income taxes in interim periods, amcbme tax disclosures. This Interpretation ieeffe as of January 1, 2007 for
Corporation and we are currently evaluating theaotf FIN 48 on our financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. BEsBployers’Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and OthestRairement Plar
(“SFAS No. 158").This Statement requires companies to recognize dabdity or asset to report the funded statushadir defined bene
pension and other postretirement benefit plane(Rkans”).The recognition of a net asset or liability willgrgre an offsetting adjustment
accumulated other comprehensive income in sharer®keluity. SFAS No. 158 will not change how the Plarsaccounted for and repor
in the income statement. Therefore, the amountsetoecognized in accumulated other comprehensivenia will be the unrecogniz
gains/losses, prior service costs/credlts anditian assets/obligations, which will continue ®dmortized under the existing guidance a
periodic pension cost in the income statement. Gongs are required to initially recognize the fuhdstatus and provide the requi
disclosures beginning for fiscal year ends aftecddeber 15, 2006. Based upon the most recent aaltulatia available, the net impact on
December 31, 2006 balance sheet would be to irrermzespaid pension costs by $17.9 million, incresher current liabilities by $2.3 millio
reduce accrued pension and post retirement berasis by $3.2 million, increase deferred tax litibs by $7.1 million, with the offs
increasing stockholder€quity by $11.7 million. Additionally, for fiscalears ending after December 15, 2008, SFAS No. liB8eguire
companies to measure the plan assets and obligatierof the date of the employeifiscal year end, however, earlier adoption of
measurement date provisions is encouraged. Wentlyrigilize measurement dates of September 30CGetdber 31 for our various Plans.
do not anticipate the change in the fiscal yearmapdsurement date to have a material impact oregutts of operation or financial conditi
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Item 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

There have been no material changes in the Coipoiatmarket risk during the nine months ended Septer@be 2006. Informatic
regarding market risk and market risk managemelitips is more fully described in itenYA. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures al
Market Risk” of the Corporation’s Annual ReportBarm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Iltem 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As of September 30, 2006, the Corporation’s managenincluding the Corporation’Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial O
conducted an evaluation of the Corporation’s dmate controls and procedures, as such term isetefim Rules 13a-15(e) and 1%8(e
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as aptkfithe “Exchange Act”). Based on such evaluatibe,Corporatiors Chief Executiv
Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded thiag¢ Corporatiors disclosure controls and procedures are effedtivall material respec
to ensure that information required to be disclosedhe reports the Corporation files and submitslar the Exchange Act is recorc
processed, summarized, and reported as and wheinereq

There have not been any changes in the Corporatintérnal control over financial reporting (aststerm is defined in Rules 13&(f) anc
15d15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the quarteteehSeptember 30, 2006 that have materially affeaie are reasonably likely
materially affect, the Corporation’s internal canttover financial reporting.

Page 34 of 36




CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION
tem 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In the ordinary course of business, the Corporatod its subsidiaries are subject to various pendiaims, lawsuits, and conting
liabilities. The Corporation does not believe tia disposition of any of these matters, indivithual in the aggregate, will have a mate
adverse effect on the Corporation’s consolidatedrfcial position or results of operations.

The Corporation or its subsidiaries have been nameal number of lawsuits that allege injury frompegure to asbestos. To date,
Corporation has not been found liable or paid aayemal sum of money in settlement in any case. Chgporation believes that the minir
use of asbestos in its operations and the relgtiveh{friable condition of asbestos in its products makeslikely that it will face materii
liability in any asbestos litigation, whether indiually or in the aggregate. The Corporation doesntain insurance coverage for th
potential liabilities and it believes adequate ¢age exists to cover any unanticipated asbestoiitya

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes in our Ristosaduring the nine months ended September 30.J@6brmation regarding our Ri
Factors is more fully described in item “1A. Ris&dfors” of the Corporation’s Annual Report on FdfK for the year ended December
2005.

Item 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit 3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatidnthe Registrant (incorporated by reference to
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 8-AlédfMay 24, 2005)

Exhibit 3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant (pwated by reference to the RegistranRegistratio
Statement on Form 8-A/A filed May 24, 2005)

Exhibit 10.1 Restricted Stock Unit Agreement, dated October0862 by and between Curti¥gright Corporation and Dav
Linton (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10Fmrm &K filed October 11, 200€

Exhibit 10.2 Restricted Stock Unit Agreement, dated October 2006, by and between Curtig¥¢right Corporation ar
David Adams (incorporated by reference to Exhibitd Form K filed October 16, 200€

Exhibit 31.1 Certification of Martin R. Benante, Chairman and@;Pursuant to Rule 13a — 14(a) (filed herewith)

Exhibit 31.2 Certification of Glenn E. Tynan, Chief Financialfioér, Pursuant to Rule 1- 14(a) (filed herewith

Exhibit 32 Certification of Martin R. Benante, Chairman and@End Glenn E. Tynan, Chief Financial Officer, fuan

to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 (filed herewi
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly causisdRbport to be signed on its behal
the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

CURTISSWRIGHT CORPORATION
(Registrant)

By :_/s/ Glenn E. Tynan
Glenn E. Tynan
Vice President Finance / C.F.O.
Dated: November 8, 2006
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
[, Martin R. Benante, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Curtis-Wright Corporation

2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report dagscantain any untrue statement of a materialdactmit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading with respect
to the period covered by this quarterly rep

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ oéimer financial information included in this gteaty report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in this
quarterly report

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | agsponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a — 15(e) and 158(e)) and internal control over financial repogtias defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and we ha

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduraesused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidh®ubsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this quarterly reparbieing prepare(

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipar, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assargegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmare with generally accepted accounting princij

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantslalisire controls and procedures and presentedsimeort our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conints procedures, as of the end of the period couryéhis report based on su
evaluation; ant

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsainternal control over financial reporting thedcurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that hagenally affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorterhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direci@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize apdrt financial information;
and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal control over financial reportin

Date: November 8, 2006
/s/ Martin R. Benante

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Glenn E. Tynan, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Curtis-Wright Corporation

2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report dagscantain any untrue statement of a materialdactmit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading with respect
to the period covered by this quarterly rep

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ oéimer financial information included in this gteaty report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in this
quarterly report

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | agsponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a — 15(e) and 158(e)) and internal control over financial repogtias defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and we ha

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduraesused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidh®ubsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this quarterly reparbieing prepare(

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipar, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assargegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmare with generally accepted accounting princij

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantslalisire controls and procedures and presentedsimeort our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conints procedures, as of the end of the period couryéhis report based on su
evaluation; ant

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsainternal control over financial reporting thedcurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that hagenally affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorterhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direci@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize apdrt financial information;
and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal control over financial reportin

Date: November 8, 2006
/sl Glenn E. Tynan

Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Curtissight Corporation (the "Company") on Form 10-Q fe period ended September 30,
2006 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Csion on the date hereof (the "Report”), MartirBRnante, as Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, and Glenn E. Tyres Chief Financial Officer of the Company, ebeheby certifies, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. section 1350, that to the best of his kndgeée

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgfewAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ Martin R. Benante

Martin R. Benante
Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer
November 8, 200

/sl Glenn E. Tynan
Glenn E. Tynan

Chief Financial Officer
November 8, 200




